
NEVADA STATE BOARD 
of 

DENTAL EXAMINERS 

Board Meeting 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

PUBLIC BOOK 



 
 

 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date & Time 
Wednesday, January 10, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Meeting Location: 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 
2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy., Suite 104 

Henderson, NV 89014 
Video Conferencing / Teleconferencing Available 

To access by phone, call Zoom teleconference Phone Number: (669) 900 6833 
To access by video webinar, visit www.zoom.com or use the Zoom app 

Zoom Webinar/Meeting ID#: 820 5186 3422 
Zoom Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 599072 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available after roll call (beginning of 
meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes for each individual. 

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, 
Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the 
Board on or before Tuesday, January 9, 2024 by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public 
comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record. 

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing before the 
Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 3) pull or remove items 
from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional 
competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or 
a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See 
NRS 233B.126. 

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone conference, it is possible that an 
amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with 
the Open Meeting Law. 

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If 
special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you may download the 
supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the supporting materials for the public 
body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014. 

 

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or tabled. 

 
 

Board Meeting Pg.1

http://www.zoom.com/
mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://dental.nv.gov/


1. Call to Order 
- Roll call/Quorum 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted email/written form): 
The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter 
raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments 
by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited 
based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board 
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, January 9, 2024, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record 
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included 
in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the 
Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada 
State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. 

 
*3. Election of Officers – NRS 631.160 (For Possible Action) 

*a. President (For Possible Action) 

*b. Secretary Treasurer (For Possible Action) 

*4. President’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Request to remove agenda item(s) (For Possible Action) 

*b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action) 

*5. Secretary – Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes (For Possible Action) 

(1) Board Meeting – 12/08/2023 

*6. General Counsel’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

a. Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

b. Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

*c. Review Panel – NRS 631.3635 
 

(1) Discussion and Consideration of Proposed Findings and Recommendations for Matters 
that have Been Recommended for Remand by the Review Panel, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Same by the Board – NRS 631.3635 

 
(i) Review Panel 1 
(ii) Review Panel 3 

 
*d. Authorized Investigative Complaints – NRS 631.360 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Dr. Z – The Board received information from Dr. Z reporting an unusual incident pursuant 
to NAC 631.155 of the death of a patient after treatment. Board consideration on 
whether an authorized investigation is warranted pursuant to NRS 631.360(1). 
(For Possible Action) 

Board Meeting Pg.2

mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov


*e. Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements –  
NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Ji Won Yang, DDS 
(2) Ji Won Yang, DDS 

*7. Old Business: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Consideration, Review, And Possible Approval/Rejection of LCB Regulations  – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Review, Discussion, and Recommendations to the Board Regarding Implementation of Proposed 
Regulations of the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada Regarding LCB File No R072-22, and the 
Practice of Dental Therapy NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

(2) Review, Discussion, and Possible Recommendations to the Board Regarding Implementation of 
Proposed Regulations of the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada Regarding LCB File No R073- 
22, and Disciplinary Actions NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

*8. New Business: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Approval of Members to Board Committees – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Anesthesia 

(2) Legislative and Dental Practice 

(3) Legal And Disciplinary Action 

(4) Continuing Education 

(5) Employment 

(6) Dental Hygiene & Dental Therapy 

(7) Infection Control 

(8) Budget & Finance 

(9) Examination Liaisons 

(i) WREB Representatives 

(10) Review Panels 
(i) Review Panel 1 
(ii) Review Panel 2 
(ii) Review Panel 3 

 
*b. Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia Permit – NAC 631.2254 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Richard C Heinl, DDS – Moderate Sedation 
(2) Joseph L Weber, DMD – Moderate Sedation 

*c. Approval/Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of License – NAC 631.160 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Brian Nelson, DMD 

*d. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Approval/Rejection of Public Heath Endorsement 
Application – NRS 631.287 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Youlanda Bates, RDH – Seal Nevada South Program 
(2) Brittany Halvorson, RDH – Community Health Alliance 

Board Meeting Pg.3



*e. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Recommendation to the Board to approve or deny The Puerto 
Rico MaxiCourse program and Clinical Residency in Implant Dentistry as a Moderate Sedation Board 
A p p r o v e d  Course of Study and to Specifically Address Whether Such Course is for patients 13 years of  
age or older. NRS 631.190 & NAC 631.2213 (For Possible Action) 

 
*9. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment period is for any matter that is within 

the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been 
specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, 
place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her 
discretion. 

 
Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board 
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, January 9, 2024, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record 
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in 
the permanent record. 
 
In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the Chair 
may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board 
of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of speakers.  
 
 

*10. Announcements 
 
 *11. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING LOCATIONS 
Office of the NSBDE 2651 N GREEN VALLEY PKWY, Ste 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners Website: www.dental.nv.gov 
Nevada Public Posting Website: www.notice.nv.gov  

Board Meeting Pg.4

mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://www.dental.nv.gov/
http://www.notice.nv.gov/


Agenda Item 5(a)(1): 

Approval/Rejection of Minutes

Board Meeting
12-8-23

Board Meeting Pg.5



Agenda Item 6(c): 

Review Panel - NRS 631.3635

Board Meeting Pg.6



Agenda Item 6(c)(1):

Discussion and consideration of proposed findings and 
recommendations for matters that have been 

recommended for remand by the Review Panel, and 
possible approval/rejection of same by the Board 

NRS 631.3635

Board Meeting Pg.7



NRS 631.3635  Appointment of panel to review investigation or informal hearing; members; 
requirements of review; findings and recommendation. 

1. The Board shall appoint a panel to review an investigation or informal hearing conducted
pursuant to NRS 631.363. Such a panel must consist of:

(a) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice
dental hygiene, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry,
one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dental hygiene and one
holder of a license to practice dental hygiene who is not a member of the Board and is not
the subject of the investigation or informal hearing.

(b) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice
dentistry or any other person not described in paragraph (a), one member of the Board
who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, one member of the Board who is a holder
of a license to practice dental hygiene and one holder of a license to practice dentistry who
is not a member of the Board and is not the subject of the investigation or informal hearing.

2. A review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 shall, in conducting a review of an
investigation or informal hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider,
without limitation:

(a) All files and records collected or produced by the investigator;

(b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by the investigator; and

(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the review panel.

3. The investigator who conducted the investigation or informal hearing pursuant to NRS
631.363 shall not participate in a review conducted pursuant to subsection 1.

4. Before the Board takes any action or makes any disposition relating to a complaint, the review
panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 to conduct a review of the investigation or informal
hearing relating to the complaint shall present to the Board its findings and recommendation
relating to the investigation or informal hearing, and the Board shall review and consider those
findings and recommendations.

5. Meetings held by a review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 are not subject to the
provisions of chapter 241 of NRS.

(Added to NRS by 2017, 988) 

Board Meeting Pg.8

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page988


Agenda Item 6(c)(1)(i): 

Review Panel 1

Board Meeting Pg.9



Agenda Item 6(c)(1)(ii): 

Review Panel 3

Board Meeting Pg.10



Agenda Item 6(d): 
Authorized Investigative Complaints 

 NRS 631.360 
(For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.11



Agenda Item 6(d)(1): 

Dr. Z – The Board received from Dr. Z reporting an 
unusual incident pursuant to NAC 631.155 of the 

death of a patient after treatment. Board 
consideration on whether an authorized 
investigation is warranted pursuant to 

NRS 631.360(1) 
(For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.12



Agenda Item 6(e):

Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/
Rejection of Stipulation Agreements 

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330 
(For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.13



NRS 631.3635  Appointment of panel to review investigation or informal hearing; members; 

requirements of review; findings and recommendation. 

1. The Board shall appoint a panel to review an investigation or informal hearing conducted

pursuant to NRS 631.363. Such a panel must consist of: 

(a) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice

dental hygiene, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, one 

member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dental hygiene and one holder of a 

license to practice dental hygiene who is not a member of the Board and is not the subject of the 

investigation or informal hearing. 

(b) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice

dentistry or any other person not described in paragraph (a), one member of the Board who is a 

holder of a license to practice dentistry, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to 

practice dental hygiene and one holder of a license to practice dentistry who is not a member of 

the Board and is not the subject of the investigation or informal hearing. 

2. A review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 shall, in conducting a review of an

investigation or informal hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider, 

without limitation: 

(a) All files and records collected or produced by the investigator;

(b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by the investigator; and

(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the review panel.

3. The investigator who conducted the investigation or informal hearing pursuant to NRS

631.363 shall not participate in a review conducted pursuant to subsection 1. 

4. Before the Board takes any action or makes any disposition relating to a complaint, the

review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 to conduct a review of the investigation or 

informal hearing relating to the complaint shall present to the Board its findings and 

recommendation relating to the investigation or informal hearing, and the Board shall review and 

consider those findings and recommendations. 

5. Meetings held by a review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 are not subject to the

provisions of chapter 241 of NRS. 

      (Added to NRS by 2017, 988) 

Board Meeting Pg.14

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page988


NRS 622A.170  Informal dispositions; consent and settlement agreements; designation of 

hearing panels. 

1. The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body, at

any stage of a contested case, to make an informal disposition of the contested case pursuant to 

subsection 5 of NRS 233B.121 or to enter into a consent or settlement agreement approved by 

the regulatory body pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

2. The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body to

designate a panel of its members to hear a contested case pursuant to this chapter. 

 (Added to NRS by 2005, 744) 

Board Meeting Pg.15

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec121
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-622.html#NRS622Sec330
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/73rd/Stats200508.html#Stats200508page744


NRS 622.330  Consent and settlement agreements: Conditions for entry; deemed public 

records; exceptions. 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a regulatory body may not enter into a

consent or settlement agreement with a person who has allegedly committed a violation of any 

provision of this title which the regulatory body has the authority to enforce, any regulation 

adopted pursuant thereto or any order of the regulatory body, unless the regulatory body 

discusses and approves the terms of the agreement in a public meeting. 

2. A regulatory body that consists of one natural person may enter into a consent or

settlement agreement without complying with the provisions of subsection 1 if: 

(a) The regulatory body posts notice in accordance with the requirements for notice for a

meeting held pursuant to chapter 241 of NRS and the notice states that: 

(1) The regulatory body intends to resolve the alleged violation by entering into a

consent or settlement agreement with the person who allegedly committed the violation; and 

(2) For the limited time set forth in the notice, any person may request that the

regulatory body conduct a public meeting to discuss the terms of the consent or settlement 

agreement by submitting a written request for such a meeting to the regulatory body within the 

time prescribed in the notice; and 

(b) At the expiration of the time prescribed in the notice, the regulatory body has not

received any requests for a public meeting regarding the consent or settlement agreement. 

3. If a regulatory body enters into a consent or settlement agreement that is subject to the

provisions of this section, the agreement is a public record. 

4. The provisions of this section do not apply to a consent or settlement agreement between

a regulatory body and a licensee that provides for the licensee to enter a diversionary program for 

the treatment of an alcohol or other substance use disorder. 

 (Added to NRS by 2003, 3417) 

Board Meeting Pg.16

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html#NRS241
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/72nd/Stats200327.html#Stats200327page3417


Agenda Item 6(e)(1): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Stipulation 

Agreements  NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; 
NRS 622.330

Ji Won Yang, DDS

Board Meeting Pg.17



Agenda Item 6(e)(2): 

Consideration, Review, and Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Stipulation 

Agreements  NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; 
NRS 622.330

Ji Won Yang, DDS

Board Meeting Pg.18



Agenda Item 7:

Old Business: 
(For Possible Action) 

Board Meeting Pg.19



Agenda Item 7(a):

Consideration, Review, And Possible 
Approval/Rejection of LCB Regulations 

NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.20



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

Board Meeting Pg.21

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


Agenda Item 7(a)(1):

Review, Discussion, and Possible 
Recommendations to the Board Regarding 
Implementation of Proposed Regulations of 
the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada 
Regarding LCB File No. R072-22, and the 
Practice of Dental Therapy NRS 631.190 

(For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.22



DENTAL THERAPY 

Key 

NSBDE existing approved revision/interlineation     

NSBDE additional suggested addition/revision/interlineation   

*Required reversion to conform to NRS  

 

Sec. 2 For the purposes of this chapter and NRS 631.3122, the Board will interpret “direct 
supervision” to mean supervision by a dentist where the dentist: 

1. Documents in the record of the patient the name of the dental therapist providing care to 
the   

2. Examines the patient before the dental therapist performs the procedure; 
3. Provides instructions for treating the patient before the dental therapist begins treating the 

patient; and 
4. Examines the patient upon completion of the procedures performed by the dental 

therapist. 

Examination of the patient by the dentist may be either face-to-face or by the use of 
electronic means as authorized by NRS 631.3122. 

 

Sec. 3.  1. In addition to the requirements set forth by NRS 631.312, a program of dental therapy 
completed pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 1 of NRS 631.312 must include, without 
limitation:  

(a) At least 500 hours of clinical practice, including, without limitation, practice hours in 
extractions and restorations; and  

(b) At least 3 years 2 years of academic instruction in dental therapy or its academic 
equivalent.  

2. The hours of clinical practice required by subsection 1 may not be used to fulfill the 
hours of clinical practice required pursuant to NRS 631.3122. 

Sec. 4.  Except as otherwise provided in NRS 622.090, in fulfillment of the requirements of 
paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 631.3121, an applicant taking the clinical examination 
approved by the Board and the American Board of Dental Examiners or the clinical examination 
administered by the Western Regional Examining Board must:  

1. Pass a simulated clinical examination in dental therapy or a comparable examination 
administered by the Western Regional Examining Board, as applicable;  

Board Meeting Pg.23



2. Demonstrate proficiency in endodontics on a simulated mannequin as the organization 
administering the clinical examination requires;  

3. Demonstrate proficiency in the preparation and placement of pre-formed crowns on a 
simulated mannequin as the organization administering the clinical examination requires; and  

4. Demonstrate proficiency in restorative dentistry on a live patient as the organization 
administering the clinical examination requires. 

Sec. 5 In addition to the items required by NRS 631.3123, a written practice agreement between 
a dentist and a dental therapist must include, without limitation: 

1. Procedures for the duplication, maintenance and storage of records of the patients of the 
dental therapist by the authorizing dentist; 

2. Specific procedures for the management of medical emergencies, including, without 
limitation: 
a. A requirement that the dental therapist may shall be certified in the administration of 

cardiopulmonary resuscitation in accordance with NAC 631.173 

Sec. 6 1.   A dental therapist may provide the following services to a patient under the indirect 
supervision or direct supervisor of the authorizing dentist: 

(a) Making and exposing cone-beam radiographs;  

(b) Application of topical preventive or prophylactic agents, including, without limitation, 
fluoride varnishes and pit and fissure sealants when a radiograph was obtained not less than 
6 months ago; 

 

2.   In accordance with the requirements of a written practice agreement as set forth in NRS 
631.312 and the services authorized by NRS 631.3124 and NRS 6313125, a dental therapist 
may provide the following services to a patient only under the direct supervision of a 
dentist:  

(a) Cavity preparation;  

(b) Restoration of primary and permanent teeth;  

(c) Extractions of primary teeth and permanent teeth with grade three plus mobility with 
recorded periodontal charting;  

(d) Preparation and placement of preformed crowns on primary teeth;  

(e) Indirect and direct pulp capping of permanent teeth;  

(f) Administration of local anesthetic;  

(g) Sub-gingival curettage;  

Board Meeting Pg.24



(h) Fabricating mouth guards for temporomandibular joint dysfunction or sleep disorders; 
and  

(i) Definitive charting of the oral cavity. 

       4.   As used in this section, “indirect supervision” means that the dentist: 

a. Documents in the record of the patient the name of the dental therapist providing care 
to the patient; 

b. Examines the patient before the dental therapist performs the procedure; 
c. Provides instructions for treating the patient before the dental therapist begins treating 

the patient; and  
d. Is not on the premises of the dental office when the procedure occurs. 

Sec. 18  NAC 631.173 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

1. Each dentist license to practice in this State must annually complete at least 20 hours 
of instruction in approved courses of continuing education or biennially complete at 
least 40 hours of instruction in approved courses, as applicable, based on the renewal 
period set forth in NRS 631.330 for the type of license held by the dentist.  Hours of 
instruction may not be transferred or carried over from one licensing period to 
another. 

2. Each dental therapist licensed to practice in this State must annually complete at least 
18 hours of instruction in approved courses of continuing education or biennially 
complete at least 40 hours of instruction in approved courses, as applicable, based on 
the renewal period set forth in NRS 631.330 for the type of license held by the 
dentist.  Hours of instruction may not be transferred or carried over from one 
licensing period to another. 

Board Meeting Pg.25



Agenda Item 7(a)(2):

Review, Discussion, and Possible 
Recommendations to the Board Regarding 
Implementation of Proposed Regulations of 
the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada 

Regarding LCB File No. R073-22, and 
Disciplinary Actions NRS 631.190 

(For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.26



DISCIPLINARY REGS 

Key 

NSBDE suggested interlineation    LCB interlineation 

NSBDE suggested addition/revision    LCB addition/revision 

 

NAC 631.240 Complaints against Licensees 

A complaint filed by an aggrieved person must be:  

(a) Attested under oath and filed on a form prescribed on the Board website. 

 (b) Submitted with sufficient evidence to support the allegations in order to make a 
determination of whether the Board has jurisdiction in the matter and whether there is sufficient 
evidence to support the allegation of a violation. The complaint form shall list each violation of 
unprofessional conduct under Chapter 631. The complainant shall indicate on the complaint 
form, the specific violation that corelates with the allegation and shall provide sufficient 
evidence to support the allegation of the violation. Allegations involving financial disputes do 
not qualify as violations of professional misconduct. The complaint form shall contain the 
authorization for use/disclosure of protected health information of the complainant. 

The complaint form shall be  may be redacted of any information identifying the accused 
person licensee before it is reviewed for jurisdiction by the Board counsel. 

Upon receipt of a complaint filed pursuant to paragraph (a), (b) and (c) the Board 
Counsel shall make a determination whether to accept jurisdiction in the matter and whether the 
evidence submitted with the complaint is sufficient to warrant an investigation pursuant to NRS 
631.360 in the matter. This determination shall be made within 30 days after receiving the 
redacted complaint. Board counsel shall attest on the document for the determination: 

(i) have no knowledge of the identity of the accused person and  

(ii) had no communication with any person with regard to the subject matter of the complaint 
(iii) have not been unduly influenced in making the determination 

 If the Board Counsel determines the Board does not have jurisdiction in the matter or the 
complainant fails to submit sufficient evidence in the matter, the redacted complaint will be 
referred to the Review Panel with a recommendation to dismiss the complaint. Upon receiving a 
recommendation from the Board counsel, the Review Panel will within 45 days: 

(i) reject the recommendation without prejudice and instruct the Executive Director to 
assign the matter to a Nevada licensed investigator; Board designated agent or  

(ii) accept the recommendation and recommend the Board dismiss the redacted 
complaint. The Board counsel’s recommendation shall be presented, with the redacted complaint, 
to the Board for dismissal. 

Board Meeting Pg.27



 

Each member of the Review Panel shall attest on the document of their recommendation: 

(i) have no knowledge of the identity of the accused person licensee and  

(ii) had no communication with any person with regard to the subject matter of the complaint  

(iii) have not been unduly influenced in making the recommendation 

If the Board receives a recommendation of the Review Panel to dismiss the redacted 
complaint the Board will within 60 days:  

(i) reject the recommendation without prejudice and instruct the Executive Director to assign the 
matter to a Nevada licensed investigator; or  

(ii) accept the recommendation and dismiss the complaint.  
(iii) the Executive Director shall, in writing, obtain the identity of the licensee and notify the 
complainant and the accused person of the dismissal within ten days. 

If the Board counsel determines that the Board has jurisdiction in the matter to investigate 
all or a portion of the complaint, the Executive Director shall assign the redacted complaint to a 
Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent The Executive Director shall notify the 
licensee that the matter has been forwarded to a Nevada licensed investigator 

The Executive Director and the Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent 
shall attest on the notice of complaint that they:  

(i) have knowledge of the identity of the accused person licensee; and  

(ii) will maintain the identity of the accused person licensee confidential from the Board 
Dental Expert Screening Consultant and the Review Panel. 

NAC 631 .......... Authorized Board Investigation upon its own motion 

2. A recommendation from the Executive Director and Board counsel pursuant to 
subsection 1 must:  

(a) contain a written statement setting forth the information that supports the 
recommendation; and  

(b) list the specific violation of unprofessional conduct under Chapter 631.  

(c) Include any reliable and competent form of proof, including, without limitation, 
statements of witnesses, public or private records, audio or visual recordings, documents, 
exhibits, concrete objects or another form of proof, that supports the recommendation.  

(d) redact the identifying information of the accused person licensee   

3. The Executive Director and the Board counsel shall attest on the recommendation of 
the authorized investigation that they:  

Board Meeting Pg.28



(i) have knowledge of the identity of the accused person licensee; and  

(ii) will maintain the identity of the accused person licensee confidential from the Board 
Dental Expert Screening Consultant and the Review Panel. 

NAC 631.250 Investigation by Board. 

1. If the Board conducts an investigation upon a complaint against a licensee, the Board 
will not limit the scope of its investigation to the matters set forth in the public complaints form 
and but will not extend the investigation to any additional matters beyond the complaint. which 
appear to constitute a violation of any provision of chapter 631 of NRS or of this chapter.  

2. If, the investigation deems that there is no violation of NRS 631 or NAC 631 after its 
investigation, the Board shall dismisses remand the complaint.  The remanded complaint shall 
not be remanded over the licensee to be used against a licensee in the dismissal does not operate 
as a limitation on or a detriment to any subsequent complaints or investigations or other action 
by the Board unless the Board receives additional information from the complainant relevant to 
that complaint.  

3. Whenever the Board directs that an investigation be conducted into a disciplinary 
matter, the results of the investigation or any information relating to the investigation will not be 
examined by and must not be disclosed to, the members of the Disciplinary Committee of the 
Board before the Board’s hearing on the matter. [Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, § XVIII, eff. 7-21-82]  

4. The Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent shall forward the notice of 
complaint to the accused person licensee to the addresses on file at the Board via certified 
registered certified U.S. Mail return receipt requested and electronic mail.  

5. The accused person licensee shall have thirty (30) days upon receipt of the notice of 
complaint to provide all records for the patient within the past 5 years.  

6. The Executive Director Executive Director and/or Board counsel may grant reasonable 
requests for extensions as needed by the licensee. 
NAC 631… Assignment of matter to Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant 

1. Upon receipt of the records and/or written response including any expert opinions from 
the accused person licensee the Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent shall redact 
any identifying information of the accused person licensee from the records and response and 
forward to a Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant. 

2. The Board shall may retain a Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant to review the 
redacted complaint and records. The redacted complaint and the dental records shall be redacted 
of any identifying information about the accused person licensee. 

3. A Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant shall be licensed dental professionals 
with no board action within the past 10 years and a minimum of 5 years actively practicing in 
Nevada. Redacted complaints against licensed dentists or specialists shall be sent to Board 
Dental Expert Screening Consultant dentists or specialists. Redacted complaints against dental 

Board Meeting Pg.29



therapists shall be sent to Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant dentists or Board Dental 
Expert Screening Consultant dental therapists. Redacted complaints against registered dental 
hygienists shall be sent to Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant dentists, Board Dental 
Expert Screening Consultant dental therapists or Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant 
registered dental hygienists. Redacted complaints shall be assigned to Board Dental Expert’s 
Screening Consultant with expertise in the relevant subject matter of the complaint. 

4. The Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant shall include in their expert opinion 
report and attest to the Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent within 45 days of 
receipt of the records:  

(a) whether there was a breach of failure to meet the standard of care under Chapter 631; 
and  

(b) provide sufficient evidence that supports the specific violation which corelates with 
the allegation failure to meet the standard of care under Chapter 631  

(c) have no knowledge of the identity of the accused person licensee and  

(d) had no communication with any person with regard to the subject matter of the 
complaint  

(e) have not been unduly influenced in making the determination 

5. The Executive Director Executive Director and/or Board counsel may grant reasonable 
extensions to the Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant as needed to complete the expert 
opinion report 

6. The Board Dental Expert’s opinion shall be deemed confidential, except from the 
licensee, pursuant to NRS 631.368. 

7. The Board may retain other expert opinions from dental professionals who have 
experienced no board action within the past 10 years and, if the expert is from outside the state of 
Nevada, a minimum of 5 years actively practicing outside the state of Nevada. The Executive 
Director must submit, in writing, a reasonable reason for using an out of state Board Dental 
Expert expert. 

8. The Nevada licensed investigator shall forward a copy of the Board Dental Expert 
opinion to the accused person within 15 days of receipt of the opinion 

9. The accused person licensee shall have thirty (30) days upon receipt of the Board 
Dental Expert any expert opinion s obtained by the Board to provide a written response including 
any expert opinions obtained by the licensee. 

10. A complainant may withdraw their his or her complaint:  

(a) at any time before the Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent forwards 
the matter to the Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant; or  

Board Meeting Pg.30



(b) With the consent of the Board, after the Nevada licensed investigator forwards the 
matter to the Board Dental Expert at any time with the approval of the Executive Director and/or 
Board counsel 

NAC 631……. Assignment of file to Review Panel 

1. Pursuant to NRS 631.3635, the Nevada licensed investigator Board designated agent 
shall forward the redacted complaint, Board Dental Expert opinion Screening Consultant report 
and accused person’s licensee’s redacted records and response including any expert opinions 
relating to the investigation to a Review Panel appointed by the Board pursuant to NRS 
631.3635.  

2. The Review Panel shall conduct a review of an investigation and/or informal hearing 
conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider, without limitation:  

(a) All files and records collected or produced by an investigator, Board designated agent, 
and/or Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant.  

(b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by an investigator; and (c) Any 
other information deemed necessary by the Review Panel. 

3. The Review Panel may:  

(i) make a recommendation to dismiss remand the complaint; or  

(ii) request the Board Dental Expert Screening Consultant Nevada licensed investigator 
or licensee to respond to any other questions presented by the Review Panel. They shall have 60 
days to respond to the Review Panel; or  

(iii) make a recommendation for an informal disposition by stipulation. If an informal 
disposition is made, the parties may waive the requirement for findings of fact and conclusions 
of law.  

(iv) make a recommendation for an informal hearing (v)make a recommendation for a 
formal hearing 

4. If the Review Panel recommends a formal hearing, the Review Panel shall present their 
findings and recommendations to a Hearing Panel delegated by the Board to conduct a formal 
hearing pursuant to NRS 631.350(3) 

NAC 631 ..........Board Delegation to a Hearing Panel 

1. Pursuant to NRS 631.350 (3) and NRS 622a.170 (2) the Board shall designate a 
Hearing Panel to take any disciplinary action pursuant to NRS 631.350.  

2. The Hearing Panel may retain the services of a Hearing Advisor who is an independent 
contractor retained by the Board to attend hearings and advise the hearing panel. The Hearing 
Advisor may advise the Hearing Panel regarding any aspects of the hearing as well as the 
admissibility of any evidence produced and deciding on motions during administrative 
proceedings.  

Board Meeting Pg.31



3. The Hearing Panel shall have three (3) members of the Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners Disciplinary Committee to preside over any formal hearing conducted pursuant to 
NRS 631.350 (3) and NRS 622a.170 (2). One member shall be named the Chair for the formal 
hearing. 

4. Each member of the Hearing Panel shall have one vote as to the verdict of any formal 
hearing conducted by the Panel. The decision of the Hearing Panel will require a 2/3 majority 
vote.  

5. Any disciplinary action taken by the Hearing Panel is subject to the same procedural 
requirements which apply to disciplinary actions taken by the Board, and the Hearing Panel has 
those powers and duties given to the Board in relation thereto. Before taking any disciplinary 
action the Hearing Panel shall review and consider the findings of a Review Panel pursuant to 
NRS 631.365  

6. The Hearing Advisor may advise the Hearing Panel in reviewing the Order and 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of any 
disciplinary hearing. All members of the Hearing Panel must attach their signature on the 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law within forty five (45) days after the conclusion of the 
hearing. 

 

 

 

Board Meeting Pg.32



Agenda Item 8:

New Business: 
(For Possible Action) 

Board Meeting Pg.33



Agenda Item 8(a):

Approval of Members to Board Committees
NRS 631.190

(For Possible Action) 

Board Meeting Pg.34



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

Board Meeting Pg.35

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

Board Meeting Pg.36

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

Board President: David Lee, DMD 
Board Secretary –Treasurer: Tejpaul Johl, DDS 

ANESTHESIA  
COMMITTEE SUB-COMMITTEE 

Dr. Branco (Chair) Dr. Branco (Chair) 
Dr. Hock Dr. Amanda Okundaye 
 Dr. West Dr. Edward Gray 

 Dr. Jade Miller 
 Dr. Joshua Saxe 
 Dr. Ted Twesme 
 Dr. James Schlesinger 
  

 
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Dr. Johl (Chair) 
Dr. Hock 
Dr. West 

Mr. Pontoni 
Dr. Streifel 

 
COMMITTEE ON DENTAL HYGIENE & DENTAL 

THERAPY 

Dr. Branco (Co - Chair) 
Mrs. Arias (Co- Chair) 

Mrs. McIntyre 
Mrs. Petrilla 

 

EXAMINATION LIAISONS (ADEX) 
Dr. Lee  

Mrs. Arias 
 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  
Dr. Lee (Chair) 

Dr. Johl 
Dr. West 

 Ms. McIntyre 
Dr. Streifel 

 

CONTINUING EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
Dr. Kim (Chair) 

Dr. Branco 
Dr. Johl 

Dr. Streifel 
Mrs. Arias 

 
 

                                REVIEW PANEL 3 
Dr. Johl  

Mrs. Petrilla  
Dr. James Schlesinger  

 

DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE 
Dr. West (Chair) 

Dr. Hock 
Dr. Kim 

Mr. Pontoni 
Mrs. Arias 
Dr. Branco 

 
   INFECTION CONTROL COMMITTEE 

Dr. Kim (Chair) 
Dr. Branco 
Ms. Petrilla 
Dr. Streifel 

 

LEGISLATIVE, LEGAL, &  
DENTAL PRACTICE COMMITTEE 

Dr. West (Chair) 
Dr. Lee 

Dr. Branco 
Ms. McIntyre 
Mr. Pontoni 

Dr. Johl 
 
 

 REVIEW PANEL 1 
DENTAL DENTAL HYGIENE 

Dr. Branco Dr. Johl  
Mrs. McIntyre Mrs. Petrilla 

Dr. Kevin Moore Ms. Nichelle Venable 
   

 REVIEW PANEL 2 
DENTAL DENTAL HYGIENE 
Dr. West Dr. Lee 

Dr. Joan Landron Mrs. Arias 
Mrs. Arias Samantha Sturges, RDH 

 

 

Board Meeting Pg.37



Agenda Item 8(b):

Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia 
Permit  NAC 631.2254 

Board Meeting Pg.38



NAC 631.2254  Temporary permits. (NRS 631.190, 631.265) 

1. The Board may grant a temporary permit to administer general anesthesia and deep

sedation or a temporary permit to administer moderate sedation to an applicant who meets the 

qualifications for a permit to administer that type of anesthesia or sedation pursuant to NAC 

631.2213. 

2. A temporary permit is valid for not more than 90 days, but the Board may, in any case it

deems appropriate, grant a 90-day extension of the permit. 

3. The Board may require the holder of a temporary permit to pass an on-site inspection as a

condition of retaining the permit. If the holder fails the inspection, his or her permit will be 

revoked. In case of revocation, the holder of a temporary permit may apply to be reinspected in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in NAC 631.2235. 

 (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 11-28-90; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; R004-17, 

5-16-2018)

Board Meeting Pg.39

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec265
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2213
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2213
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2235


Agenda Item 8(b)(1):

Richard C Heinl, DDS - Moderate Sedation

Board Meeting Pg.40



Board Meeting Pg.41



Board Meeting Pg.42



Agenda Item 8(b)(2):

Joseph L Weber, DMD - Moderate Sedation 

Board Meeting Pg.43



Board Meeting Pg.44



Board Meeting Pg.45



Agenda Item 8(c):

Approval/Rejection of 
Voluntary Surrender of License  NAC 

631.160 (For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.46



NRS 631.160  Officers and Executive Director. 

1. At the first regular meeting of each year, the Board shall elect from its membership one

of its members as President and one of its members as Secretary-Treasurer, each of whom shall 

hold office for 1 year and until a successor is elected and qualified. 

2. The Board shall define the duties of the President, the Secretary-Treasurer and the

Executive Director. 

3. The Executive Director shall receive such compensation as determined by the Board, and

the Board shall fix the amount of the bond to be furnished by the Secretary-Treasurer and the 

Executive Director. 

 [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1995, 275) 

Board Meeting Pg.47

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/68th/Stats199502.html#Stats199502page275


Agenda Item 8(c)(1): 

Brian Nelson, DMD

Board Meeting Pg.48



Board Meeting Pg.49



Agenda Item 8(d): 

Discussion, Consideration & Possible 
Approval/Rejection of Public Health 

Endorsement Application NRS 
631.287 (For Possible Action)

Board Meeting Pg.50



      NRS 631.287  Dental hygienists: Special endorsement of license to practice public health 

dental hygiene; renewal. 

1. The Board shall, upon application by a dental hygienist who is licensed pursuant to this

chapter and has such qualifications as the Board specifies by regulation, issue a special 

endorsement of the license allowing the dental hygienist to practice public health dental hygiene. 

The special endorsement may be renewed biennially upon the renewal of the license of the dental 

hygienist. 

2. A dental hygienist who holds a special endorsement issued pursuant to subsection 1 may

provide services without the authorization or supervision of a dentist only as specified by 

regulations adopted by the Board. 

 (Added to NRS by 2001, 2691; A 2013, 479) 

Board Meeting Pg.51

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/71st/Stats200118.html#Stats200118page2691
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/77th2013/Stats201303.html#Stats201303page479


Agenda Item 8(d)(1): 

Youlanda Bates, RDH - Seal Nevada South Program

Board Meeting Pg.52



Board Meeting Pg.53



Board Meeting Pg.54



Agenda Item 8(d)(2): 

Brittany Halvorson, RDH - Community Health Alliance

Board Meeting Pg.55



Board Meeting Pg.56



Agenda Item 8(e): 

Discussion, Consideration & Possible Recoomendation 
to the Board to Approve or Deny the Puerto Ric 
MaxiCourse Program and Clinical Residency in 
Implant Dentistry as a Moderate Sedation Board 

Approved Course of Study and to Specifically Address 
Whether Such Course is for Patients 13 years of age or 

older NRS 631.190 & NAC 631.2213 (For Possible 
Action)

Board Meeting Pg.57



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

Board Meeting Pg.58

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


  NAC 631.2213  Permit required; qualifications of applicants. (NRS 
631.190, 631.265) 
     1.  Except as otherwise set forth in NAC 631.2211 to 631.2256, inclusive, no 
dentist may: 
     (a) Use general anesthesia or deep sedation for dental patients, except in a facility 
for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or she first: 
          (1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit to administer general anesthesia to his or her patients, and obtains a 
certificate of site approval for each location at which general anesthesia, deep sedation 
or moderate sedation is administered to his or her patients; 
     (b) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 13 years of age or older, 
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 
          (1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant 
to paragraph (a) of subsection 2; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older, 
and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate sedation 
is administered to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older; or 
     (c) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 12 years of age or younger, 
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 
          (1) Obtains a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 
2; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or 
younger, and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate 
sedation is administered to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or younger. 
     2.  To obtain a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit, a dentist 
must apply to the Board for such a permit on a form prescribed by the Board, submit 
any fees that are set by the Board pursuant to NRS 631.345 and produce evidence 
showing that he or she is a dentist who is licensed in this State, and: 
     (a) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 13 
years of age or older, the applicant must show evidence of: 
          (1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation, 
and the successful administration as the operator of moderate sedation to not less than 
20 patients; or 

Board Meeting Pg.59

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec265
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2211
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2256
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec345


          (2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the 
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 
               (I) Valid certification in Advanced Cardiac Life Support by the American 
Heart Association; or 
               (II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides 
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 
     (b) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 12 
years of age or younger, the applicant must show evidence of: 
          (1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation 
to patients 12 years of age or younger, and the successful administration as the operator 
of moderate sedation to not less than 25 patients who are 12 years of age or younger; or 
          (2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the 
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 
               (I) Valid certification in Pediatric Advanced Life Support by the American 
Heart Association; or 
               (II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides 
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 
     (c) For a general anesthesia permit, the applicant must show evidence of the 
completion of an Advanced Cardiac Life Support course given by the American Heart 
Association or a course providing similar instruction that is approved by the Board, and: 
          (1) The completion of a program, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
advanced training in anesthesiology and related academic subjects beyond the level of 
undergraduate dental school in a training program as described in the Guidelines for 
Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students, published by the 
American Dental Association, 211 East Chicago Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60611, and 
available, free of charge, at the Internet 
address http://www.ada.org/~/media/ADA/Education%20and%20Careers/Files/A
DA_Sedation_Teaching_Guidelines.pdf?la=en; or 
          (2) The completion of a graduate program in oral and maxillofacial surgery or 
dental anesthesiology which has been approved by the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation of the American Dental Association. 
     3.  A holder of a general anesthesia permit may administer general anesthesia, deep 
sedation or moderate sedation to a patient of any age. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 10-21-83; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; 
R159-08, 4-23-2009; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Board Meeting Pg.60



Board Meeting Pg.61



Board Meeting Pg.62



Board Meeting Pg.63



Board Meeting Pg.64



Board Meeting Pg.65


	Wednesday, January 10, 2024
	Meeting Location:
	Video Conferencing / Teleconferencing Available
	PUBLIC NOTICE:
	1. Call to Order
	2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted email/written form):
	*c. Review Panel – NRS 631.3635
	*e. Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements –  NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330 (For Possible Action)
	*d. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Approval/Rejection of Public Heath Endorsement Application – NRS 631.287 (For Possible Action)
	*e. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Recommendation to the Board to approve or deny The Puerto Rico MaxiCourse program and Clinical Residency in Implant Dentistry as a Moderate Sedation Board Approved Course of Study and to Specifically Address...





